. Piramal

Finance

Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited

Annual Report of Subsidiaries 2021-22

Contents
Sr. No. Name of Subsidiary Companies
1 DHFL Advisory & Investments Private Limited
2 DHFL Investments Limited
3 DHFL Holdings Limited

Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly known as Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited)
CIN: L65910MH1984PLC032639
Registered office: 601, 6th Floor, Amiti Building, Agastya Corporate Park, Kamani Junction, Opp. Fire Station, LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai 400070
T +91 22 6230 9200 F +91 22 6151 3444
www.piramalfinance.com

Internal Use--Confidential



K.K. MANKESHWAR & CO. 121, POCKET-1 JASOLA

N -
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TSYV: 255-}?1 -41141182322

del@kkmindia.com
Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of DHFL Advisory & Investments Private Limited

Report on Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying. Financial Statements of M/s DHFL Advisory &
Investments Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of slgnificant
accounting policles and olher explanalury ntoiimation  (herelnafer referred v as
“Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™ in Lhe manner so required and give a true and raiF VIew in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of Lhe state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, of its loss and total comprehensive income
(comprising loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year then ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
-described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the director’s report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The director’s report
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
information is materially inconsistent with the financial

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be




When we read the director’s report, if we conclude that there is a ‘material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true
and-fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act far safeguarding the assets of the Campany
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with- SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify ‘and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusionAfergayy, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal




Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order té design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. :

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid F|nanC|aI Statements comply with the Accountlng




On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “"Annexure B”; and

The provision of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act are not applicable to
the company for the year ended 31st March, 2022; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us: :

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Financial Statements- refer Note -15 to the
Financial Statemeants:

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe_that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e .{,’Q§h 'ed under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatemgn:




(v) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and
hence provision of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

N

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

FRN:- 106009W

won, 312844 QLs A CSMB'LL(
New Delhi, dated the
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Annexure “"A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirement” section of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2022, we report that:

1. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment as at
31st March, 2022 hence reporting under clause 3(j)(a) to 3(i)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

b. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2. As the Company does not have any inventory at the year end, accordingly clauses
(ii)(a) and (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

3. The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or any other parties.
Therefore, the provisions of the Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d),
(iii)(e), and (iii)(f) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not advanced loans to directors including entities in which the
Director is interested to which Section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and
hence not commented upon. Further as per information and explanation given to
us by the management, provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in
respect of loans and advances given have been complied with by the Company.
Hence, provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of
investments made and, guarantees and securities given not applicable to the
Company. '

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning
of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the

extent notified.

6. According to the information and explanation given to us, we are informed that
the maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act 2013.

7. According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of accounts, and records, the Company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, as applicable, with
appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay in one case. The
provisions relating to provident fund, employees’ state insurance, goods and
service tax, custom duty, cess and other statutory dues are not applicable to




According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2022
for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become
payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company, there is no due in respect of income tax, goods and service tax
and duty of customs as on 31st March 2022 which have not been deposited on
account of a dispute are as foliows: ‘

Name of Nature of Amount Period for Forum where

Statute dues (Rs in which the dispute is
Lakh) amount related pending

Income Disallowance _

Tax u/s 14A 99.45 | AY 2017-18 ITAT- U/s 156

Income Disallowance

Tax u/s 14A 105.10 | A.Y 2018-19 TTAT- ll/s 156

8. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9. (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender.
Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution orgovernment or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order isnot applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting
on clause 3(ix)(f)of the Order is not applicable.

10. (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
+ public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of theOrder is not applicable.

shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not



11.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

(o) According to the information and cxplanations given to us, there were no
whistle blower complaints received during the year by the Company.

12.The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the
examination of the records of the Company, all transaction with related parties
are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting slandaids. The Piovisivin uf seclivii 177
are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
company and hence not commented upon.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit,
issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicabie.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented
by the management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any
CIC.

The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during



19.

20.

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS

Partner

Membership No. 097820
For and on behalf of
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) on other thanongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) There are no any ‘amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of
section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been
transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section
(6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

NS

FRN:- 106009W

VO J.L«qa%’to'klcsapgmL\
New Delhi, dated the
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"ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE

LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s DHFL
Advisory & Investments Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate inlernal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit oplmon on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial report DY




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
managcement and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India. \QA&L,

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

FRN:- 106009W

uoin ! 226434820 ALesn P guy
New Delhi, dated the
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DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022

Amount in (% Lakh)

Particulars Note As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
I Assets
A Non Current Assets
(a) Financial Asset
i) Others Financial Asset 3 1.55 1.55
B Current Assets
(a) Financial Asset
i) Cash & Cash Equivalent 4 60.34 63.90
(b) Other current asset 5 0.27
Total Assets 62.15 65.45
I Equity and Liabilities
A Eaulty
(a) Equity Share Capital 6 7,501.00 7,501.00
(b) Other Equity 7 (7,442.78) (7,440.50)
B Liabilities
(a) Current Liabilities
(i) Financial Liabilities
i) Other Financial. Liabilities 8 3.78 4.84
(ii) Other Current Liabilities 9 0.16 0.1
Total Equity and Liabilities 62.15 65.45
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming
. . 1-23
part of the Financial Statements

This is Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

Unliy

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner
Membership No. 097820

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

AL

w
For and on behalf of Mr. Pradeep Sawant Mr. Alok Bahl
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., Director Director
DIN : 09857171 DIN:08574045

Chartered Accountants
FRN:- 106009W

New Delhi, dated the 26th May, 2022

Internal Use--Confidential



DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit & Loss for Year ended 31st March, 2022

Amount in (% Lakh)

Particulars — Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
| [INCOME
(a) Revenue from Operation - -
(b) Other Income 10 1.27 0.01
TOTAL INCOME 1.27 0.01
I |[EXPENSES
(a) Other Expenses 11 3.56 1,15
TOTAL EXPENSES 3.56 445
Il [Profit / (Loss) before tax (2.29) (4.44)
IV |Less: Provision for Taxation
(a) Current Tax -
(b) Deferred Tax Charge
V  |Profit / (Loss) for the year (lll - IV) (2.29) (4.44)
VI [Other comprehensive income -
VIl |Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year (V + VI) (2.29) (4.44)
Paid up Equity Share Capital ( Face value £10/- each) 7,501.00 7,501.00
VIl |Earnings per Equity share (face value ¥ 10 each) 13
Basic ) (0.00) (0.01)
Diluted (%) (0.00) (0.01)
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information 123
forming part of the Financial Statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Member; No. 097820

W
For and on beha‘(

K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- 106009W

New Delhi, dated the 26th May, 2022

Internal Use--Confidential

Mr. Pradeep Sawant
Director
DIN : 09857171

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

AL

<

Mr. Alok Bahl

Director

DIN:08574045



DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for Year ended 31st March, 2022

Amount in (% Lakh)

Particulars Not Year ended For the half year | For the half year Year ended
otes 31.03.2022 | ended 31.3.2022 | ended 30.09.2021 |  31.03.2021
I |INCOME
(a) Revenue from Operation - - » -
(b) Other Income 10 1.27 0.37 0.90 0.01
TOTAL INCOME 1.27 0.37 0.90 0.01
Il |EXPENSES
(a) Other Expenses 11 3.56 1.51 2.05 4.45
TOTAL EXPENSES 3.56 1.51 2.05 4.45
Il |Profit / (Loss) before tax (2.29) (1.14) (1.15) (4.44)
IV |Less: Provision for Taxation
(a) Current Tax
(b) Deferred Tax Charge -
VvV |Profit / (Loss) for the year (Il - IV) (2.29) (1.14) (1.15) (4.44)
VI [Other comprehensive income
VIl |Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (V + VI) (2.29) (1.14) (1.15) (4.44)
Paid up Equity Share Capital ( Face value ¥10/- each) 7,501.00 7,501.00 7,501.00 7,501.00
VIl |Earnings per Equity share (face value 10 each) 14
Basic ) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.01)
Diluted (%) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.01)
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory
Information forming part of the Financial 1-24
Statements
This is the SiadsmemtQf Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
%! 3"/?:;1,,) For and behalf of the Board of Directors
> "\\3\,
& 4?
§ Chartered 1% :
M Accountenisich);
N X Mr. Pradeep Sawant Mr.Alok Bahl

Director
DIN : 09857171

Director
DIN:08574045



DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for Year Ended 31st March, 2022
Amount in (X Lakh)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2022 Year Ended 31.03.2021
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and (2.29) (4.44)
Loss
Adjustments for:
Liability written Back (1.26)
Interest on Loan (0.02)
Operating Profit before Working capital changes (3.56) (4.44)
)
Changes in Working capital
Other current asset (0.25)
Other Liabilities 0.25 1.30
Working Capital changes (0.00) 1.30
Cash generated from operations during the year (3.56) (3.17)
Less: Income Tax (Paid) / Received (Net) - -
Net Cash generated From / (Used In) Operating Activities (3.56) (3.17)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash generated From / (Used In) Investing Activities - -
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash generated From / (Used In) Financing Activities s G
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents (3.56) (3.17)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 63.90 67.07
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year 60.34 63.90
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalent
Balance with bank in current account 60.33 63.89
Cash on Hand 0.01 0.01
60.34 63.90
This is the Cash Flow referred to in our Report of even date.
DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Partner
Membexship No. 097820 &H
% -
For and on behalf of Mr. Pradeep Sawant Mr. Alok Bahl
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., Director Director
DIN : 09857171 DIN:08574045

Chartered Accountants
FRN:- 106009W

New Delhi, dated the 26th May, 2022
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DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity
(All amount in INR Lakh, except number of share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting |Changes in Equity Restated balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of
year as at 1.4.2021 Share Capital due to |beginning of the current share capital during |the current reporting
prior period errors reporting year the current year year as at 31.03.2022

7,501.00 - 7,501.00 - 7,501.00

(2) Previous reporting peiivd

Baldiie dL Lie beglnnling of the current reporting [Changes in Equity Restated balance at Changes in equity Balance at the end of
yedi dS dt |.4.2020 Share Lapital due to [the beginning of the share capital during [the current reporting
prinr parind arrors current reporting the current year year ac at 21.02.2021
year
7,501.00 - 7,501.00 - 7,501.00

B Other Equity

Particulars Reserves & Surplus
Retained Earnings
As at 1st April'20 (7,436.05)
Profit/(loss) for the year ended (4.44)
As at 31st March' 21 (7,440.49)
As at 1st April 21 (7,440.49)
Profit/(loss) for the Year Ended (2.29)
As at 31st March' 22 (7,442.77)

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For and behalf of the Board of Directors Or%

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS

Partn

For and on behalf of

K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., Mr. Pradeep Sawant Mr. Alok Bahl
Chartered Accountants Director Director
FRN:- 106009W DIN : 09857171 DIN:08574045

New Delhi, dated the 26th May, 2022
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DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sig

nificant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial

Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022

1.

2.1

Internal Use--Confidential

Corporate information
DHFL Advisory & Investments Pvt. Ltd. (DAIPL), incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013, is a

subsidiary company of Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited and carlrying on the business
of providing all kinds of advisory / consultancy services and fees based intermediation activities
including but not limited to the treasury, banking, insurance and other financial services as well as
marketing, advertising and business promotional activities; soliciting or procuring insurance
business as a corporate agent in respect of all classes of insurance, consulting for soliciting of all
types of loans, investment and portfolio research, market research. DAIPL has its registered office

in Mumbai.

The Financial Statement were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26"

May, 2022.

Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements ('financial statements'). These policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under historical cost convention on
a going concern and an accrual basis in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) (to the extent notified).
The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Historical cost convention
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each

reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The
measurement and/ or disclosure in these financial statements has been accordingly determined
except for share based payment transactions, leasing transactions and certain other
transactions that are required to be valued in accordance with Ind AS 102, Ind AS 17 and Ind AS




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial
Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022

2.1.A The company has incurred a loss of Rs. 2.29 Lacs during the year ended 31 March 2022 and the

2.2

23

accumulated losses as at 31 March, 2022 amounting to Rs. 7,442.79 Lacs. The considering
present available cash and cash equivalent is sufficient to sustain the current level of operations
and the management is in the process of exploring business opportunities, hence the financial

statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the
format prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared
and presented as por the regquitements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Mows”.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs. Per share data is

presented in Indian Rupee.
Operating Cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
e Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
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Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial
Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022

2.4

2.5

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contract with customers is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss through
following steps:
i. Identification of the contract or contracts with the customers
ii. Identification of the performance obligations in the contracts
iii. Determination of the transaction price
iv.  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
V. Recognition of revenue when company satisfy a performance obligation.

Revenue, mainly comprises of charges towards Advisory and Consultancy services. The same is

recognized on performance of service.

Taxes on income

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income
tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except when they relate to items that are recognized outside profit
or loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case tax is also

recognized outside profit or loss.

Current Tax
The tax currently payable is based on the estimated taxable profit for the year for the Company

and is calculated using applicable tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and
Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using applicable tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary

differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases,
and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are computed separately for each taxable entity. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and

unused tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based_on.tax rates and
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Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial
Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022

2.6

2.7

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Allernative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future
income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet
when the assets can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit
associated with the asset will be realized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

e Provisions are recognised only when: an entity has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event; and

e itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and

e areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when
the effect of time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the
present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required
to settle a provision is recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be

received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
e a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
® a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract
is recognised and measured as a provision.

Contingent Assets:
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when economic

inflow is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balance in current account and Balances with

banks in deposits accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months. Short term and liquid

investments being subject to

part of cash and cash equiva



DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial
Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on
Earnings per share. The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the reporting year.

The number of equity shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the
weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also
weighted average number of equity shares which would have been issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential shares. In computing diluted earnings per share only potential equity
shares that are dilutive are included.

Segments

Based on “Management Approach" as defined by Ind AS 108, The Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) evaluates the “Operating Segments". Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the CODM. The accounting policies
adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the
Company. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their
relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Income / costs which relate to the
Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been

included under Unallocated Income / Costs.

Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

Exceptional items
An item of income or expense which its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to
improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an exceptional item

and the same is disclosed in the notes to accounts.

Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as

follows:
e Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for;
e other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material
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Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial
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2.13 Financial instruments

Recognition of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets primarily comprise of
investments, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial liabilities primarily

comprise of borrowings and other payables.

Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs and revenues that are directly attribulable Lo e acyuisitioin or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account for
such difference as follows:

e if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets,
then the difference is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on initial recognition
(i.e. day 1 profit or loss);

e inall other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price
(i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the

asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational
basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Financial Assets - Classification

e debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured
at amortised cost;

e all other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed gn ~fal( value basis, or held for
sale) and equity investments are subsequently measured
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However, the Company may make the following irrevocable election / designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

e the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, in OCI; and

e the Company may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

A financial asset is held for trading if:
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial

guarantee

Investment in equity instruments at FVOCI
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
unless the Company’s management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity

investments as equity instruments at FVOCI.
The Company has not elected to classify any equity investment at FVOCI.

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI
The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset individually and the Company’s business model

for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms
should give rise to cash flows that are meeting SPPI test.

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition.
That principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments
of principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual
terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are
unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or
commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or an
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An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the
classification of a financial asset. The Company determines the business models at a level that
reflects how financial assets are managed individually and together to achieve a particular

business objective.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity
investment designated as measured at FVIOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in
OCl is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to

impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects or initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria
but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different

bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent Measurement of Financial assets

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of Ind AS 109 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial

assets.

The Company business model objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates. During
the current year due to certain market conditions, the company has sold financial assets during
the year by way of assignment transactions which does not impact the business model of the
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Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial
assets affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the
new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in business model that result in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. During the
current financial year and previous financial year there was no change in the business model
under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.

Impairment

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls
that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not
cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial
instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely

basis.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification
losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying

value.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of

the financial instrument.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are
equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

The Financial assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either
the entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial
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Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or
e retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. In such cases, the
financial assets are derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

The Company transfers loans through assignment transactions. In accordance with the Ind AS
109, on derecognition of a financial asset under assignment transactions, the difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration received shall be recognised in Statement
ol Pruflit and Luss.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the
Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial
assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement activities will result in
gains.

Equity Investments (in subsidiaries)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and cquity instruments issucd by a Company entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

Repurchase of the Company’s own equit
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Debt Instrument

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible debenture is determined using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible debenture. This amount is recorded as
liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the
debenture. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of compound
instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholder’s equity net of income tax effect, and

not subsequently remeasured.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
pbtentially unfavourable to the Company or a contract that will or may be settled in the
Company’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Company is or
may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative
contract over own equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset
does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies,
financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company
to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific

accounting policies.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent
consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itisa derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are

measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts
of financial liabilities that are subsequently me ed at amortised cost are determined based
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2.14

2.15

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liahilities when, and anly when, the Campany’s nhligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be
rccovered principally through a sale (rather than througl continuing use) when the dssel is
availahle for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sale of such asset and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount

and fair value less costs to sell.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainties

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management
to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable.

Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual
results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known /

materialise.

Impairment of financial assets
I'he impairment provisions tor financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default

and expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on company’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period and
accordingly Impairment has been estimated.

Income Taxes
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating
budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining for income
taxes, including amaunt expected ta he paid / recovered for uncertai




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial
Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques which involve various judgements and assumptions.

Going Concern Assumption
Going concern assumption has been applied on the basis that the company will able to continue
its operatlon in the foreseeable future and without there being any intention or necessity for it




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakh, except number of share and per share data, unless otherwise stated )
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o

o

Others Financial Asset

Particulars

As at 31.03.22

As at 31.03.21

Amount in Lacs

Amount in Lacs

Security Deposit

Total Other Financial Asset

1.55

1.55

1.55

1.55

Cash & Cash Equivalent
Particulars As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs
Ralances with Bank 60.33 63.09
Cash on Hand 0.01 0.01
60.34 63.90

Total Cash & Cash Equivalent

Other Current Assets
Particulars As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
Amount Amount
Advance to other 0.27
Total Other Current Assets 0.27 &
Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
Number Amount in Lacs Number Amount in Lacs

Authorised
Equity Share of X 10/- each 90,000,000 9,000.00 90,000,000 9,000.00

90,000,000 9,000.00 90,000,000 9,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up
Equity Share of X 10/- each 75,010,000 7,501.00 75,010,000 7,501.00
Total Equity Share Capital 75,010,000 7,501.00 75,010,000 7,501.00

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

As at 31.03.22

As at 31.03.21

Particulars

Number Amount in Lacs Number Amount in Lacs
Equity shares at the beginning 75,010,000 7,501.00 75,010,000 7,501.00
Add: Shares issiied during the year . = ¥
Equity shares at the end 75,010,000 7,501.00 75,010,000 7,501.00

b The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to equity shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital;

The Company at present has one class of issued, subscribed and paid up share referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- each. Each holder of

equity share is el
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c Shares in respect of equity shares of company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or associates of
the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate;

As at 31.03.22

As at 31.03.21

Particulars
Number % Holding Number % Holding
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited ( Formerly
Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Ltd) 75,009,985 99.99 75,009,985 99.99
(Holding Company) 75,009,985 99.99 75,009,985 99.99
d Shares in respect of Shahholding of Promoters
Shares held b?‘promoters at the end of the year as on 31.3.2022 % Change during the
Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares year
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited ( Formerly Dewan Housing Finance 75,009,985 100%,
Corporation Ltd)
Slidies lield By Promioters at the ena of the year as on 31.3.2021 % Change during the
year
Promotar nama No. ot Shares 96of total shares
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited ( Formerly Dewan Housing Finance 75,009,985 100%
Corporation Ltd)
7 Other Equity
Particulars As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs
Reserves & Surplus
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (7,440.49) (7,436.05)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the Year (2.29) (4.44)
Closing Balance (7,442.78) (7,442.18) (/,440.49) (/,440.49)
Total Other Equity (7,442.78) (7,440.50)
8 Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs
Other Payables 3.78 4.84
Total Other Financial Liabilities 3.78 4.84

9 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31.03.22

As at 31.03.21

Amount in Lacs

Amount in Lacs

Statutory Dues

Total Other Current Liabilities

0.16

0.11

0.16
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10 Other Income

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31.3.22 31.3.21
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs
Liability written Back 1.26 -
Interest on Loan 0.02 -
Miscellaneous Income - 0.01
llotal Other Income 1.27 0.01

11 Other Expenses

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

Total Other Expenses

31.3.22 31.3.21

Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs
(a) Professional Charges 0.33 2.45
(b) Auditor's Fee* 1.75 1.77
(c) Bank charges 0.02 0.00
(d) Filing fees 0.01 0.20
(e) Duties and Taxes 0.34 0.01
(f) Prior period Expenses 1.1 -
(g) Miscellaneous Cxpenses - 0.02

3 Rk 1,15

*PAYMENT TO AUDITORS

[Enrticulars

Fui e year ended

Four the year ended

31.3.22 31.3.21
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs
(a) AudiL Fee 1.50 1.50
Total 1.50 1.50
Ratios For the year ended | For the year ended
12 31.3.22 31.3.21
(a) Current Ratio 15.31% 12.91%
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio NA NA
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA
(d) Return on Equity Ratio -3.93% -7.34%
(e) Inventory turnover ratio NA NA
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio NA NA
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio NA NA
(h) Net capital turnover ratio NA NA
(i) Net profit ratio -64% -100%
(j) Return on Capital employed NA NA
NA NA

(k) Return on investment

13 Other Statutory information

i) The Company does not have any Benami property , where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

ii)  The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yetto be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iii) The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies

iv)  The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

v)  During the year the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s)or entity (ies), including fore
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

ign entities (Intermediaries) with the

a)  Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b)  Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v

i) During the year the Company have not received any fund from any person

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

13

b)  Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii)

viii) The Company does not have any owned or Leased immovable passere

Internal Use--Contidential

(s)or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

The Company have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.



" DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

(All amount in INR Lakh, except number of share and per share data, unless otherwise stated )

14

Earning Per Share

Year ended 31.03.2022

Year ended 31.03.2021

Particulars
Net Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders
Profit/(loss) after tax (2.29) (4.44)
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders (2.29) (4.44)
No. of Equity shares (Number) 75,009,985 75,009,985
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 75,009,985 75,009,985
Nominal value of Equity Shares (%) 10 10
Earning Per Share (%) :
Basic (0.00) (0.01)
Diluted (0.00) (0.01)

15 Contingent Liability & Commitment (Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021

Contingent Liability

Income tax dues

AY 2017-18 Income tax demand 99.46

AY 2018-19 Income tax demand 105.11 204.57 204.57
Nil Nil

Capital Commitment

Year ended 31.03.2022

16 Related Party Disclosures

a. Name of the Related Parties and Nature
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited (Formerly Dewan Housing
Flhaiice Cutpuiatlun Linilted)
(a) Mr. Satya Narayan Baheti, Director (upto 11.11.2021)
(b) Mr. Pradeep Atmaram Sawant, Director (wef, 11.11.2020)
(c ) Mr.Alok Bahl, Director (wef, 11.05.2021)

i Holding Company

i Key Managerial Personnel, Director & Relative

(d) Mr. Aditya Mulgund - Chief Executive Officer
(e) Mr. Vinodh Nekhiladi Chief Financial Officer (Submitted his resignation
on 01.06.2019)

iii Joint Venture Partner NIL
iv Associate Company NIL
v Enterprises over which KMP are able to exercise significant influence (a) DHFL Holdings Limited
b. Details of transactions with Related Party
(Amount in Lacs)
Details of Transactions Associate
Company
Advance Given 0.25(-)
Interest Income 0.02(-)
Balance as at Year End
Loan Given 0.25(-)
Interest Accure 0.02(-)

Bracket indicated of previous year

Notes

a. Related Party relationship is identified by the Company

b. The transaction with the related parties are disclosed only till the relationship exists.
c. Figures in bracket represents previous year figures.

17 Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises
Based on the information available with the Company there are no dues outstanding to Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises as at year end under the Micro, Small Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006 (MSMED Act, 2006). Further, no interest during the year has been paid or payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006

18 Fair Value Measurement
(Amount in Lacs)

Financial Instruments by category
. 31st March '22 31st March ‘21
Particulars = :
FVTPL FvoCI Amortised Cost FVTPL Fvocl Amortised Cost
Financial Asset
Cash & Cash Equivalent - 60.34 - 63.90
Other Financial Assets - 1.55 - B 1.55
Total Financial Asset - - 61.89 - = 65.45
Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities - - 3.78 - - 4.84
Total Financial Liabilities - - 3.78 - = 4.84

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalent and other liabilities and assets etc. are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to current and short term nature of such balances.
For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Recognised fair value measurements
Level 1: Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use

of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is includgé
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Capital management

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to its shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on
management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the

amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Financial Risk Management
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial

assets include investment, other assets and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s

receivables from customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in
financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Company’s Management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management.

The management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The company is also taking steps to improve liquidity going forward by focusing
on new initiatives.

The Lable below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities and assets as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. (Amount in lacs)

Particulars Carrying Amount Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months ) Total

As at March 31, 2022

Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities 3.78 3.78 . 3.78
Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalent 60.34 60.34 = 60.34
Other Financial Asset 1.55 - 1.55 1.55
As at March 31, 2021

I iahilities

Other Financial Liabilities 4.84 4.84 - 4.84
Assets

Investments i

Cash & Cash Equivalent 63.90 63.90 - 63.90
Other financial assets 1.55 - 1.55 1.55
Taxes

a. Income Tax Expense
The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2022

Profit & Loss section (Amount in Lacs)

Particulars 31st March '22 31st March 21
Current Tax Expense -
Deferred Tax - -
Total Income Tax Expense Recognised in profit and loss - -
Other comprehensive income section
Particulars 31st March '22 31st March '21
Tax on Other Comprehensive income - -
Total income tax expense recognised in Other comprehensive income - -
b. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Particulars 31st March '22 31st March '21
i Income before income tax (2.29) (4.44)
ii Enacted Tax rate in India 25.63% 26.00%
il Expected Tax Expense (i*ji) (0.59) -
wv Uther than temporary differences 0.59 -
Total - -
v Temporary Difference 30.45 25.75
Temporary difference on which deferred tax assets not recognised (30.45) (25.75)
Total - -
vi Net Adjustment (iv + v) -
Vil lax expense recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss (iii+vi) - 4

Note:- In the view of losses, provision for tax has not been recognised. Further the deferred tax asset arising out of timing difference and carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits
has not been recognised. Since it is not probable that sufficient future taxahle profit will he available to allow all or part of the deffered tax asset to be utilized.

Vide Order dated June 7, 2021, the Mumbai bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited
(*NCHTLY) for she Corpurata Insabvanay rasalition poce oo of Do Huusling Pliaiice Linlted ( DHIL” ) Uider 3ECUUN 31 UL UIL IHUWEHLY did BUHRIUBLEY LBYE, 2U16. PUFSLARE t6 the Resolubion

Plan, PCHFL has obtained control over DHFL and its subsidiaries by virtue of holding 100% shareholding and subsequently, PCHFL merged into DHFL to conclude acquisition on September 30, 2021
(Implementation Date). The Resolution Plan was filed with the respective Registrar of Companics on September 30, 2021 giving effect to th

torad




23 In the opinion of the management the provision for all known liabilities are adequate and are not in excess of amount considered reasonably necessary.

As per our report attached of even date

For and behalf of the amf Directors

<

Mr. Rradeep Sawant Mr. Alok Bahl
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., Director Director
Chartered Accountants DIN : 09857171 DIN:08574045

FRN:- 106009W

New Delhi, dated the 26th May, 2022
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Vatsaraj 3 co. (Regd.)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
First Floor, Fort Chambers,

C Block, 65 Tamarind Lane,
Fort, Mumbai - 400 023.
Tel No.: +91-22 2265 3931

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT +91-22 2263 5488

To the Board of Directors of DHFL Investments Limited
Report on the Audit of the Special purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We héve audited the accompanying special purpose Standalone Ind AS financial statements
of DHFL Investments Limited(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including Other comprehensive
income) for the period April 01 2021 to September 30 2021 and October 01 2021 to March 31
2022, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the period April 01 2021 to March 31 2022, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other t.explanatory informatidn(hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”). The
financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Actread with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for theFinancial

Statements:

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a frue and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity |
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind .AS) spécified under
section 133 of the Actread with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015,

as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and applicatio

Fourth Floor, Bharat House, 104, Mumbai Samachar Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001
Phone: +91 22 4069 3900/39 Fax: +91 22 4069 3910 Email: admin@vatsarajco.co



appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. | |

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process,

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion'oh these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (I.CAI). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audft to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgmen;c, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
fmancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provid

a basis for our audit opinion..




Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us,the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company.
as at March 31, 2022, and Profit including other comprehensive income for the period April
012021 to September 30 2021 and October 01 2021 to March 31 2022, changes in equity
for the period April 01 2021 to March 31 2022. |

Emphasis of Matter

During the year, the Compahy has written back the Compulsory Convertible Debentures
and interest thereon issued to Wadhawan Global Capital Private Limited (WGC), based on
the resolution duly approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) with respect
to the takeover of the Dewan Housing Corporation Limited by Piramal Capital and Housing
Finance Limited (PCHFL). WCG has contested the NCLT order, however based on the legal
advice there is strong merit of the case in favour of PCHFL. Qur opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 2 to the financial statements,
which describes the basis of accounting, The financial statements are prepared to assist the
Company for consolidation with the holding company. As a result, the financial statements

may not be suitable for another purpose.

For Vatsarajé& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 111327W

Dr.CA BK. Vatsaraj
Partner '
M. No. (039894
UDIN:

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May 2022
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Vatsaraj (s co. (Regd)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
First Floor, Fort Chambers,

C Block, 65 Tamarind Lane,
Fort, Mumbai - 400 023,
Tel No.: +91-22 2265 3931

49122 2263 5488

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of DHFL InvestmentsLimited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion :

1. We have audited theaccompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of DHFL
Investments Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31t March 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of

- Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, includiﬁg a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements to give the information required by the

- Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (Ind AS) as amended, and other
accounting principles generallyr accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2022, and loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equily and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
2, We have conduéted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
" under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Re'sponsibﬂiﬁes for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our réport. We are independenf of the Compahy in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that

are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements under the

Fourth Floor, Bharat House, 104, Mumbal Samachar Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 4
Phone: +91 22 4069 3900/39 Fax: +91 22 4069 3910 Email: admin@vatsaraj




the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion.

.Emphasis of Matter

3. During the year, the Company has written back the Compulsory Convertible Debentures and interest
thereon issued to Wadhawan Global Capital Private Limited (WGC), based on the resolution duly
approved by the National Company Law Tribunall (NCLT) with respect to the takeover of the Dewan
Housing Corporation Limited by Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited (PCHFL). WCG has
contested the NCLT order, however based on the legal advice -there is strong merit of the case in favour of

PCHFL. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the, Board’s Report including

Annexure to Board’s Report and Shfareholder’_s Information, but does not include the standalone

financial statements and our auditicén"s report thereon Our opinion on the standalone financial
statements does not cover the otheixfi information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connectionEEWith our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the otheri information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are réquired to communicate the matter to those

charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of‘ these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accouﬁting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of a:dequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of

the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detéct-in

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policie
2 .



judgments and estimates tiiat are i'easonablé and prﬁdent' and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectlvely for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accountmg records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. |

In preparing the financial statements, maneigement is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

6. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether theStandalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accorciance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

‘The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resu'll:'mg from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate fhe appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

3




* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going. concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
- related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
* Evaluate the overall -presentation, structure and content of the financial statements
~ including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiymg
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings; including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. |
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear \on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requlrements

7.

8.

As required by the Companies (Audltors Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of sub-section 11 of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” of this report a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent apphcable As the Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or
associate enterprise, consolidated fmanc1al statements is not prepared. Flence Paragraph 3(xxi)

of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) is not applicable.

As required by Section 14’3(3) of the Act, we report that:

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations.which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)in our opinion, proper books of accounf as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and

- the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of

account.

(d)in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31

March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separateReport in

“ Annexure B”.

9. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

L

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position. ' |

The Company did not have 'any long-term contracts includingderivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company-

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in ény manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneﬁciariés _

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company



understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in-any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and

(¢) Based 'on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement. |

v. The dividend is neither declared nor paid during the year by the Company.

10. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):
In our opinion and according‘to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration
is paid by the Company to its directors during the current year. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be

commented upon by us.

For Vatsaraj& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 111327W

. Dr. CA B. K. Vatsaraj
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: 25t May 2022 o | M. No. 039894
UDIN:22039894 AKRUWB2688




Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Repott on Standalone Ind AS financial statements of

DHFL Investments Limited as on 31st March 2022, referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on

Other Legal and Regulatory requirement” section of our report of even date, we report the

following;

()

(i)

(i) (a)
(b)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)
(a)
(b)

(viii)

9 ()

The Company does not have any fixed asset. Therefore, Para 3 (i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

The Company does not have and inventories Therefore, Para 3 (i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and according to the records of the
Company as examined by us, the company has not provided loans or advances in nature of loan or
stood guarantee or provided security to any other entity. Therefore, Para 3(iii)a), (c ), (d), (e) and 63
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and according to the records of the

Company as examined by us, the company has not provided guarantee or given security. Therefore,
Para 3(iii)(b) is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has complied.
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

In our opinion and acco,fding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposit. Therefore, Para 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company

Company being in service industry, maintenance of Cost records is not applicable. Therefore,
Para 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

According to the information and explanation given to us and according to the records of the
Company as examined by us, undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund,employees’ state insurance,income tax, custom duty, cess, goods and services tax and
other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year with the
appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable were outstanding as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date on which they become payable.
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no disputed dues which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2022, .

According to the information and -explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no transactions to be recorded in the books of account
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

According to the 1nformat10n and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company hasnot defaulted on repayment of any Loan or
Interest during the year.




(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(b)

(<)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(@)

(b)

(a)

(b)

Accordmg to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company exammed by us, Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lenders.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, Company has not taken any term loan.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, funds raised on short term basis are utilized for short term
purpose only. .

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, during the year the Company has not raised any money from any
person or entity for the account of or to pay the obligations of its associates, sub51d1ar1es or
joint ventures, therefore Para 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.-
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, No loans were raised during th_e. year by way of pledge of
securities, therefore Para 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, during the year Company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offering or other public offering. Therefore, Para 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company ,
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, during the year Company has not raised any money by way of
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures. Therefore,
Para 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company _

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation
given to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers/
employees has been noticed or r‘eporfed, during the year. Therefore, Para 3 (xi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

In our opinion and aécording to information and explanations given to us, Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Therefore, Para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification of the
records of the Corﬁp_any and on the basis of review -and approval by the Board and. Audit
Committee, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations giVen to us, the Company does
not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
the provision of the companies act 2013 -

The Company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him.




(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(@)

- (b)

(c)

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the legal opinion, the
company is not required to registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank.of India Act, 1934.
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification of the
records of the Company, During the year no Non-Bankmg Financial or Housing Finance
activities are conducted.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
According to the information and explanation given to us, the Group does not have any CIC,
Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification of the
records of the Company, the Company has incurred cash losses during the Financial year
INR 3.72 Lakhs and preceding financial year INR 6.26 Lakhs.

According to the information and explan'ation given to us and based on our verification of the
records of the Corhpany,‘there are no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year

In our opinion and According to the information and explanation given to us and based on
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that company might not be capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date; :

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification of the
records of the Company, Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
company. Therefore, para 3(xx) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

Accordihg to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification of the
records of the Company, Management Certified Accounts are received for the Joint Venture
which is consolidated and No accounts are received for the Associated enterprise, hence we
would not be able to give any comments if any adverse comments in the CARO 2020 of the
Joint venture-and Associated Enterprise.

For Vatsarajé& Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRIN: 111327W

Dr.CA B. é Vatsa\{j

Place: Mumbai ' | Partner
Date:25t May 2022 . M. No. 039894




ANNEXURE ‘B’ to Independent Auditors” Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement
of DHFL Investments Limited, Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory requirement” sect |

ion of our report of even date. -

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DHFL Investments
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘'ICAT).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and mainteﬁance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the acéounﬁng records, and

the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors” Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and

the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemrisxl financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such cont_rolgs operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporti ir operating effectiveness. Our




audit of internal financial controls over financial reporﬁng included obtainihg an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropi‘iate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance wiﬂl generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that

(1) Pertain to the mainténance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) - Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

1




Opinion |

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on .th_e internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note en Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For Vatsaraj& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 11132

CA Dr. B. K. Vatsaraj
Place: Mumbai ' - Partner
Date: 25t May 2022 M. No. 039894
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DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022

Amount in (Z Lakh}

Particulars

Naotes

As at 31.03,22

As af 31.03.21

= =

(a)
(b)
(c}
@

(e}
{t)
(g)

(a)
b
(<}
(d)
(e}
{f
(8)
(h)
()
Gy
(k)

{a)
{b)

(c)
{d)
(&
()
(8)

{a)
(k)
{c}
(@

P

(a)
@)

Assels

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent
Bank Balance other than (a) above
Derivative Financial Instrument
Receivables
(I)Trade Receivable
(I} Other Receivable
Loans
Investments
Other Financial Assets
Security Deposit

Non-Financial Assets

Inventories

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Investment Property

Biclogical Assets other than Bearer Plants
Property Plant and Equipment

Capitat WIP

Intangible Assets under development
Goodwill

Other Intangible Assets

Other Non Financial Assets (to be specified)

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity
Financial Liabilities
Derivative Financial Instrument
Payables

{)Trade Payables

{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises ”

(if) totat outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises :

(II) Other Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail
enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Debt Securities

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities}

Deposits

Subordinated Liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Nen-Financial Liabilities

Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Other non-financial liabilities{to be specified)

EQUITY :
Equity Share capital
Other Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Significant accounting policies

[=3}

10

4.51

102,002.25

1.50

5.54

149,167.88

1.50

102,008.26

149,174.92

10,125.00
91,876.42

4.02
11.21

10,125.00
139,034.57

102,008.26

149,174.92

Ag per our report of even date
Por Vatsaraj & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAT FRN: 1113

Dr. CA B. K Vatsaraj
Partner
M No,: 039894

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25/5/2022

For and behalf of the Board df Directors

“Jairam Sridharan
Director

DIN : 05165390

Director

b, Prédeep Bhadauria
Director

DIN : 08696317




DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Amount in (¥ Lakh)

Particulars Notes|  Year ended 31.03.2022 Year ended 31.03.2021
Revenue from operations
i) |interest [ncome _ _
(i} [Dividend income . B
(i3} {Renatal Income - B
liv) |Fees and Commission Income - .
{v) [Netgain on fair value changes - .
{vi) INet gain on derecognition of financial instrurments under amortised cost category - -
tvil) iSale of productstincluding Excise Duty} - -
(viit) [Sale of services R .
{ix) [Others (Write back of interest) 3561 B
() [Total Revenue from operations 361 B
{11 [Other Income (to be specified) . R
(T [Total Income ([+11) 361 ,
E:fpenses
i} jFinance Costs 11 - 078
{if) |Feesand commission expense - -
Gil) |Net loss on fair value changes - -
(iv) |Net loss on derecogniticn of financial instruments under amortised cost category - -
(¥) {lmpairment on financial instruments . -
tvi} |Cost of materials consumed - -
tvit} |Purchases of Stock -in -trade R .
(viii) {Changes in [nventories of finished goods, stock -in - trade and work -in - progress - -
{ix) |Employee Benefits Expenses - .
(i) |Depreciation , amortization and impairmen - -
(x) |Others expenses {fo be gpecified) 12 3.72 547
(IV} {Total Expenses (IV) 372 6.26
(V) |Profit / {loss) before excaptional ftems and tax (IH - IV} .11 {6.26)
(VI} |Exceptional items - Impairment/(Reversal of impairment) of investment in Joint Venture 4 47,165.63 *(24,416.00)
(VI |Profit/(loss) before tax {V -VI ) (47,165.74) 24,409.74
(VII) |Tax Expenses - -
(a) Current Tax - .
(b) Deferred Tax - -
(IXy |Profit / (loss} for the period from continuing operations(VI -VIII ) (47,165.74) 24,409.74
X} [Profit/{ioss) from discontinuéd operations : - .
{XI) |Tax Expanse of discontinued operations - -
(XID) [Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations{After tax) (X -XI) - -
{XEN) fProfitf(loss) for the period (IX+XI) (47,165.74) 24,409.74
(XIV) |Other Comprehensive Income
(a)
(i) ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and amounts) - .
(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - .
Subtotal (A) - .
B
(i} Htems that will be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and amounts) - -
(i) Income tax relating to iterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Subtotai (B)
Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) . .
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIIE+XIV} (Comprising Profit (1oss) and
(X¥) |ether Comprehensive Income for the period) (47,165.74) 24,409.74
(XVI) |Paid up Equity Share Capital ( Face value Z10/- each) 10,125.00 10,125.00
(XVIT} Earnings per equity share {for continuing operations)
Basic (%) {46.58)
Diluted (3) (46.58) 22
(XVIID)|Earninga per equity share {for discontinued operations)
Basic (%) - -
Diluted (%) - -
(XIX) {Earnings per equity share {for continuing and discontinued operations) 13
Basic  (3) (46.58) 4.
Diluted (%) {46.58) 22
See accormnpanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 111327W
r.Jairam S;'idharan Mr. Pradeep Bhadauria
Director Director
Dr. CA B.K. Vatsaraj : 05165390 DIN : 08696317
Partner
M No.: 039894

Place: Mumnbai
Date: 25/5/2022

DIN : 00858068




DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2022

Amount in (¥ Lakh)
Year Ended 31.03.2022 Year Ended 31.03.2021
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (47.165.74) 24,409.74
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Impairement of asset
Impairement of Investment 47,165.63 {24,416.00)
Write back of interest on CCDS (3.61} -
Operating Profit before Working capital changes (3.72) (6.26)
Changes in Working capital
Other Mon-Current Liabilities - 0.78
Other Current Liabilities 2.69 0.83
Other Current Assets - -
Working Capital changes 2.59 1.61
Cash generated from operations during the year (1.03) (4.64)
MNet Cash From Operating Activities (1.03} 064
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES )
Current Investments ot considered as Cash or cash equivalents
Investments in Equity Shares - - - -
et Cash used in Investing Activities - A
C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares -
Loan received/{paid} from Holding Company -
Proceeds from issue of CCD's - - -
Net Cash generated From / (Used in) Financing Activities - -
Net Increase/ {Decrease) in Cash Equivalents (1.03) {4.64}
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 5.54 10.18
Cashy and Cash Equivalents at the close of the year . 451 8.54

This is the Cash Flow referred to in our Report of even date.
Negative Figure {-) represents Cash Ouiflow.

For Vatisaraj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 111327W

Dr. CA B, K, Vatsaraj
Pariner
M No.: 039894

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25/5/2022

. For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr.Jairam Sridharan M. Pradeep Bhadauria

Director Director

DIN : 08696317

DIN ; 05165390




DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Staternent of Changes in Equity for the Year ended 31st March '22

A

Equity Share Capital
Changes In
Balance at the | equity share Changes in | Balance at the
Particulars beginning of | capital dueto | Resfated balance at the| equity share end of
the reporting prior period beginning of the capital during reporting
period QITOIS reporting period the year period

Authorised
12,00,00,000 (P¥ 20-21 12,00,06,000 Equity Shares of ()
10/- each 12,000.00 - - - 12,000.00

12,000.00 - - - 12,000.00
issued, Subscribed and Paid ap
10,12,50,000 (PY 20-21 10,12,50,000) Equity Shares of (T}
10/~ each fully paid up 10,125.00 - - - 10,125.00

10,125.00 - - - 10,125.00
Other Equity

Amount in (¥ Lakh)
Reserves & Surplus
Equity Portion
Partiulars Retained Earnings | Capital Reverse of C‘ump?und Total
) Financial
Instrument

As at 1st April20 (75463.54) 150,088.46 114,624.82
Profit/(Loss) for the Year Ended 24,409.74 24,409.74
As at st March'21 (51,053.89) 190,088.16 139,034.57
As at 1st April 21 {51,053.89) 150,088.46 139,034.57
Transfer to capital reserv 190,088.46 (190,088.46) 0.00
Rightback of Debt component CCD 7.50 7.60
Profit/{Loss) for the Period (47,165.74) - (47,165.74)
As at 31st March 22 (98,219.63) 190,096.06 - 91,876.42

Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited (PCHFL) has acquired Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited (DHFL) as part of an Insolvency and
Bankruptcy process. PCHFL submitted the Resolution Plan on 22 December 2020, and it contained prayers inter alia seeking nullification of the
Compulsory Convertible Debentures ("CCDs") Issued to Wadhawan Global Capital Private Limited (*WGC") and extinguishment of rights pursiant to
these CCDs. Vide the order approving the Resolution Plan dated 7 June 2021, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) also allowed the
prayers contained therein. Based on the approval of the Resclution Plan by Hon'ble NCLT, the Company has written back the carrving value of CCDs

through capital reserve.

WGC and a limited liability partnership by the name of TDH Reaity LLP have pursued the litigation against the Resolution Plan purportedly as the
ultimate beneficiary of the CCDs. However the PCHFL has sort legal advice and based ortthe same legal expert have adviced that the PCHFL have

strong case on merlis

As per our report of even date

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accauntants
ICAI FRN: 111327 W

Drv.CA . Vatsaraj
Partner
M No.: 039894

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25/5/2022

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Director
DIN : 05165390

v Jairam Stidharan

Mr. Pradeep Bhadauria
Director
DIN : 08696317




DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial Statements for the Period ended 31st March, 2022
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a)

b)

o)

d)

e)

f)

22

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DHFL Tnvestments Ltd.{DIL) is wholly owned subsidiary company of Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited { Formerly Dewan
Housing Finance Corporation Limited) and has been incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. DIL has been

" incorporated with the intent of becoming a "core investment ~company” under the Master Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India

on August 25, 2016. DIL's business objective is to acquire any shares, stock, debentures stocks or securities in accordance with the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other applicable statutory and legal provisions. DIL has registered office in Muinbai.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of preparation of financial statements :

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordarnce with the Indian Accounting Standards as notified under
section 133 of the Compames Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs {MCA’) as amended by the Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies

. {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP) as amended from time to time.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements. The Company has
adopted Ind AS standards effective from April 01, 2017 with comparatives for year ending March 31, 2018 and April 01, 2017 being
restated and the adoptions were carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. All
applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Difference between the actual-results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materiatised.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in INR in Lakhs unless otherwise stated.

Revenue Recognition :

Dividend Income ’ _

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve
the dividend.

Other Income .
Revenue is recognised when there is reasonable certainty as to measurement and ultimate realization of the same.




2.3

24

2.5

2.6

Financial Instrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

(DFinancial Asset:

Initialntecognition and measurement :

All financial instruments are recdgnized injtially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through the
statement of profit and loss,transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, purchase or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place are recognized on
the trade date i.e. the date that the company commits to purchase or seil the asset.

Subsequent measurement : For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified as measured at: » Amortised
cost » Fair vatue through profit and loss (FVTPL) » Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) : Financial asset are measured at fair value through profit and loss if it
does not meet the criteria for classification as measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCE All fair value changes are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments :All investments in equity instriuments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair vahie,

the group may, on initial recognition, irrevacably elect to meastte the same either at FVTOCT or FVTPL.

Financial Liability

Initial recognition and measurement :

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
lability except financial liabilities at FVTPL that are measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement :

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial labilities carried at fair value
throngh  profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recagnised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: Amortized cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus the principat repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount, The company is classifying the following under
amortized cost.  (I)Borrowings from banks (2) Borrowings from others (3)Trade payables (4) Other financial liabilities,

Derecognition: A financial liability shall be derecognized when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

"changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks and on hand, as

defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Impairment of Assets: )

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal / external
factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost of disposals and value in use. In assessing value in use, the stimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
orderly transaction between market participants at-the measurement date. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.Jmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
expense categories. :
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2.9

Earnings Per Share :

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates
and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial staternents’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their regpective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and [iabilities
are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the balance sheet dates. The effect on the
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rate is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty of realization in future.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when -
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote , no provision or disclosure is made.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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3 Cash and Cash Equivalent
. Amount in (¥ Lakh)

As at As at
Paxticulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
{2) Cash on hand 0.04 .04
(b) Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 447 549
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 4.51 5.54
4 Investments
Amount in (T Lakh)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i Fair Value
. Fair Value
Tarticulars i
Nos. AtCost | throughprofiy |Amortised Cost{  MNos. AtCost through 1 Amortised
oss or OCI. profitf loss Cast
or OCl

Non-current Investments
Ungnoted
Investient in ienguoted cquity instraments in
associate
DHFL Venture Trustee Company Pvi. Lid 32,500 2,25 - - 22,500 2.25 - -
Tnvestitent in ungaoted cquity instioments in
Joint Venture
Pramerica Life Insurance Company Limited
(erstwhile DHFL Pramarica Life lnsurance
Company Limited) 187,030,931 200,050.00 - - 187,030,931 200,050 - -
Less : [mpairement in value
Total Non-current Investments - Gross (A) 200,052.25 - - 200,052.25 - -
Tnevestment cutside India - - - - - - - -
fnvestment in India i - 200,052.25 - - - 200,052,25 - -
Total Nog-current Investmenis - Gross (B) 200,052,235 - - 200,052.25 - -
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss (C) 98,050.00 - - 50,884,37 - -
Total Nop-current Investinents - Net (D} 102,002.25 ] - - 149,167.88 - -

Nate : In respact of Pramerica Life Insurance Company Limited (PIPL} (erstwhile DHFL Pramerica Life Lnsurance Company Limitec), there was reversal of impairment of Rs
13.05 per share totaling to Rs 2,44,16,00,000 basedi on the internal valuation as on 31st March 2021, During the 31st March 2022, Management has revisited the impairment
based on the external valyation for the value of the share as on 31st March 2022, based on the valuation there is further impairment of Rs 27.33 per share totaling to Rs
4,71,65,63,098 thus decereasing the vaiue per share from Rs 79.75 to Rs 52.42. Thus, the impairement is relfected in Profit and loss Account as Exceptional Item.

5 Payables

As at As at
Particulars | 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

‘Trade Payable

(i) total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises

(if) total outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprises and smalf enterprises
Other Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of ricro

enterprises and small enterprises

(i1} total outstanding dues of credilors other )

than micro enterprises and small enterprises $.3% +.02

Total Payable 6,59 4.02

Ageing of Othet Payable

Total outstanding dues of creditors other

than reicro enterprises and small enterprises

Less than 1 year - 4.45 2.7
1102 years 214 1.31
2 to 3 years

Maore than 3 years

Total 6.59 4.02

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information coliected by the Management. The
Company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filed by the suppliers with notified authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Adct, 2006) from vendor claiming the status as micre or small enterprises, hence no disclosures have been made.

Trade payables are recognised al their original invoice amounts which represents their fair values on initial recognition. Trade payables are considered to be of short duration
and are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed lo approximate their fair values.




6 Debt Securities
Amount in (¥ Lakh)

March 33, 2022 March 31, 2021
. Designated
Particulars Ab Amortised air Value | Designated at Fair . At Amostised Fair Va}ue_ at Fair
. Cost through Value through Total Cost through profit/ | Value Total
profiff loss profit/ loss loss through
prcffitf loss
Unsecured
Liability portion of Compound financial
instruments - - - - 7.60 - - 7.60
Interest payable on CCD - B 261 3.61
Total (A) ’ - -~ - - 11.21 - - 11.21
Debts Securities in India - - - - 11.21 - - 11.21
Debts Securities in Outside [ndia - - - - - . - - -
Total (B) ' - - - - 112 - : 171

Terms Of Debentures

One Not-receemnable, non-participating, fully, mandatorily and cc;rnpuzsory convettible debentures (CCD's) shalt convert into one equity share of DIL. ("Conversion Ratic")
The CCD can be converted any time after expiry of 100 months from deemed date of allotment (i.2.30th Mar'i7) of the CCD's further they shali compulsorily convert into
equity shares of DIL as per the conversicn ratio on the date falling at the expiry of 110 months from the deemed date of allotment of the CCD's. Rate of interest/CCD yield :
0.001%. :

Piramal Capttal and Housing Finance Limited (PCHFL) has acquired Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited (DHFL) as part of an Insolvency and Bankruptcy process.
PCHFL submitted the Resolution Plan on 22 December 2020, and it contained prayers inter alia seeking nullification of the Compulsory Convertible Debentures (“CCDs”}
issued to Wadhawan Global Capital Private Limited {“WGC”) and extinguishment of rights pursuant to these CCDs. Vide the order approving the Resolution Plan dated 7
June 2023, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT) also allowed the prayers contained therein, Based an the approval of the Resolution Plan by Hon'bte NCLT,
the Company has written back the carrying value of CCDs through capital reserve.

WGC and a limited liability partnership by the name of TDH Realty LLF have pursued the litigation against the Resolution Plan purportedly as the ultimate beneficiary of the
CCDs. However the PCHFL has sought legal advice and based on the same legal expert have adviced that the PCHFL have strong case on merits

7 Borrowing (Other than Debt Security)
Amount in (¥ Lakh)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Designated
. Fair Yalug  {Designated at Fair . Fair Value at Fair
Particulars i
At Amortised |y ough | Value through Towl | AtAmertised | ehprofiy | Value Total
Cost . ) Cost
protit/ loss profitf loss ) loss through
profit/ loss
Unsecured
Short Term borrowings From Helding
Company - - - - - - - -
"Total (A) . - - - - - - - -
Borfowings in India - - - - - - - -
Borrowings in Qutside India - - - - - - - -
Total (B) M - - - - - - C -

8  Other Financial Liabilities
Amount in (T Lakk)

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Statutery Liabilities 0.25 g1z

Total Other Financial Liabilities 0.25 .12
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Equity Share capital

Amaunt in (I Lakh)
Changesin  {Restated .
Bal t th
b: ancs ch equity share  jbalance at the %:i:ys;;:o Balance at the
Particulars lhegre uftin capital due ko [beginning of :I _“:'] durian end of
TEPOrinG prior period  jthe reporting P & repotiing
period . the year .
lerors peried period
Authorised
12,00,00,000 (PY 20-21 12,00,00,000) Equity
Shares of (Z) 20/~ each 12,000.00 12,000-0¢
12,600.08 12,000.04
jIssued, Subscribed and Paid up
10,12,50,000 (PY 20-21 10,12,50,000) Equity
Shares of () t0/- each fully paid up 10,125.00 10,125.00
10,125,080 10,125.00

entitled te one vole per share. The Company hag

As at 31st March, 2022

Particulars As at 318t March, 2621
No.gf shates| Amount | Ne. of shares Amount
Equity shares at l}'u: beginning 101,250,000 10,125.00 | 101,250,000 10,125.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Equity shares at the end 11,250,000 10,125.00 | 101,250,000 10,125.00

Details of shareholders holding more than five

Particul As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
anticulars No. of ghares| % holding | No. of shares] % holding

Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly Dewan Heusing Finance Corporation
Etd) 101,249,94G 10006 | 161,249,940 100
(Haolding Company)

101,249,940 100.00 | 101,249,940 100
Other Equity

Refer to the statement of changes in equity for movement in Other equity.

Finance Coat

Amount in (¥ Lakh)

Year ended 31.03.2022 Year ended 31.03.2021
Financial Financial
labitities . N llabilities .
Particulars meagured at On Financial measured at On Financial
. Habilities liabilities
fair value falr value
through meamired at thrragh measured at
) Amortised Cost ¥ Amortised Cost
profit or profitor
loss foss
Unwinding of [nterest portion - - - 078
Total Finanee Cast - - - 0.7§
Other Expenses
Amount in (% Lakh}
: Year ended | Year ended
Particulars ama | 30320m
(a) Auditor's Remuneration 1.55 1.50/
{b) Professional Fees 122" 1.15
() ROC Filing Fees 002 1.29
(d) Bank Charges 0.39 038
{e) Duties and Taxes 0.53 D60
{0 Miscellangous Expenses 0.01 001
{g) Annual NSDL Fees - 0.76
Total Other expenses 3.72 5.47
Eaming Per Share
Amount in (¥ Lakh}
Patticulars Yearended | Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Profit/(Loss} after-tax as per statement of profit
and loss {17,165.74) 24,409.74
Net Profit attributable to equity sharcholders {47,165.74) 24,409.74
No. of Equity shares {Number) 101,250,000 | 101,250,000
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 101,250,000 | 101,250,000
Nominal value of Equily Shares {T) 10 10
Earning Per Share {3) :
Basic {46.58) 24.11
Diluted {46,58) .22

The Company at present has one class of issued, subscribed and paid up share referred to gs equity shares having a par value of (¥) 10/~ each, Each holder of equity sharcis
not declared or paid any dividend.

percent equity sharea and Promotar holding in the Company are as under:




14 Relaied parties transactions

As per Indian A¢counting Standard (Ind AS 24) on " Related Party BHisclasures” details of transactions with
A} List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
1 COMPANIES
(i) Holdi
(a) Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited ( Formerly Dewan Housing Finance Carporation Limited) (based on voting power)
(b) Wadhawan Global Capital Privale Limited (upto 30th September 2021) :
(i) Key Managerial Pessonnel, Director & Relative
(a) Mr.Pradeep Bhadauria, Direclor (wef, 11.02.2020)
(b) Mr. Bipin Singh, Directar (wef, 08.11.2021)
(¢) Mr.Jairam Sridharan, Director {wef, 08.1 1.262%)
{d) Mr.Sushant Pawar, Chief Financial Officer (Resigned on 01.06.2019 however the Board has not accepted the resignation)

(iif) Enterprises over which KMP are able to exereise significant infiugnce
{a) Piramal Consuminer Preducts Private Limited
{b) PEL Finho!d Private Limited
{c} Viridis Power Managers Private Limited
(d) Piramal Systemns & Technologies Private Limited
(e} Piramal Investments Advisory Services Private Limijed
{f) Providian Technalogy Services Private Limited
(g) Social Worth Technologies Private Lintited
{h) Pramerica Lifo Insurance Company Limited
(i} DHFL Venture Trustee Company Private Limited

B} Details of transactions during the period ended 315t March, 2002
Amount in (2 Lakh)

Pramerica Lite Fnsurance
Company Limited (erstwhile DHFL Venture Trustee Wadhawan Global
DHFL Pramarica Life Company Pvt, Lid (Associate Holding Company Capital vt
Details of Transactions Insurance Company Limited) Company) Ltd.(Holding Company)
{Joint Venture}
ear ende: earended | Year énded Year énded Year ended Yedr ended” | Year ended[ Year ende
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03,2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
1) Short Term Borrowings
Opening - - - -
Loans taken during the year - - - -
Loans repaid during the year - - - -
Loan outstanding at the end of the year i ] - -
2) Interest on CCD : | - . - 0.78
3) Amount written Back
Intersst payable on CCD 7.60
Liability portion of Compound financiai insiruments "] ) 3.61
equity component of CCD ) 190,088.46
4) Other Equity/ Debt Securities : §
Non-redeemable, non-participating, fully,
mandatorily and compulsory convertible
debentures (CCD's) to Wadhawan Global
Capital Pvt. Ltd. . ) - - - 190,10 G
5) Interest accrued and due
Wadhawan Giobal Capital Pvt. Lid. . - - 361
6) Investement in Equity net of impairiment 102,000.00 149,167,488 225 2725
15 Audit Fees
Amount in & Lakh)
. Year ended Year ended
Paticulars 31.66.2022 31.03.2021
Audit Fees 150 150
Certification 0.05
Total Audit Fees 1.55 1.50

16 Segment Reporting
The income of the Company comprises of solely dividend and interast income and accordingly there are no reportable segments as.specified in IND AS 108 ("Operating
Segment”) which needs to be reported.

17 Deferred Tax Assels not recognised as a matter of prudence due to carried forward losses would not be set off in near future.

18 Contingent Liability : NIL

19 Vide Order dated June 7, 2021, the Mumbai. bench of the Hon'ble Naticnal Company Law Tribunal (“"NCLT") approved the Resolution Plan submiited by Piramal Capital &
Housing Finance Limited (“PCHFL") for the Corporate Insolvency resolution process of Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited {"DHFL") under Section 31 of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Pursuant to the Resolution Plan, PCHFL has obtained conirol over DHFL and its subsidiaries by virtue of holding 100% shareholding
and subsequentty, PCHFL merged into PHFL to conclude acquisition on September 30, 2021 {Implemeniation Date). The Resolution Plan was filed with the respective
Registrar of Companies on September 30, 2021 giving effect to the said merger.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Accounting classification

The carrying value of finandial instruments by categories are as follows:

Carrying Value
31-Mar.22 31-Mar-21 -
Particulars Falr Value Fair Value : Eair Value Fair Value
air Valu ail
through | Amortised Cost through | Amortised
throughOCI | "oou8 ortised Cost) - roughocy | roush  Amortised Cost
profit or loss profit or loss| - -

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenty - - 4.51 - - 5.04
Others . - 1.50 - - 1.50
Investments:
Investment in associates /
joint ventures - - 102,002.25 - - 149,167.88

- - 102,008.26 - - ' 149,174.92
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - -
Other Payable 6,59 402
Other financial tability - - 0.25 - - 0.12

- - 6.83 - - 4.14

Fair Values

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities:

As at March 31, 2022
Fair Value hierarchy
Quoted Significant Significant
Financial assef measured| Fair value as at| prices in observable | unobservable
at Fair Value March 31, 2022 active inputs (level 2) | inputs (fevel 3)
markets
(level 1)
EYTPL - Unguoted
equity instrument - - z -
-As at March 31, 2021
Fair Value hierarchy
Quoted Significant Signiftcant
Financial asset measured| Fair value as at|  prices in observable | unobservable
at Fair Value March 31,2021 |  active  |inpuis (level 2) | inpnts (fevel 3)
markets
(level 1)

FVTPL - Unguoted

2quity instrurment

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying

amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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Notes 20 Cont'd
Financial instruments - Fair values

Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk and

Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s principal financial labilities comprise of other payables. The main purpose of these financial Kabilities
is to finance the Company”s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senjor management oversees
the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate tisk, currency risk and other price
tisk, such'as equity price risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include FVT PL investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becatse of
changes in market interest rates.

Equity price risk

The Company’s non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future
values of the investment securities, Company’s investment in it’s group company - DHFL Pramarica Life Insurance
Company Limited, which is non-listed, is significant. But being the startegic investment, company is riot enfluenced by
equity price risk.

Credit risk :
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit rigk from its operating activities from its other financial
instruments.

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s board of directors.
Investmenis of surplus funds are made only with approval of Board of directors,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as faras possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by cohtinuously monitoring forecast a
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financia] assets and Habilities.

Capital Management _ 3
Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital struc \ h
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages N
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements:
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,



21 Micro, small and medium enterprises disclosure

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises is based on the management’s knowledge of thelr status. The Company has not received any intimatios: from
suppliers regarding their status urder the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Mediura Enterprises Development Act, 2008, (MSMED Act).

Particulars As on 31-Mar{ As on 31-Mar|

2022 2021

(i)  Principal amount remaining unpaid to any - -
supplier as at the end of the accounting year,

lii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any - -
supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

{iif} The amount of interest paid along with the - -
amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day.

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the - -
period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act.

fv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining - -

*, unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable - -
even in the succeeding year, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23,

Dues to Micro and Smail Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties

22 Details of Loans and Investments as required w/s 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013;-
1. Investments made are disclosed under note no. 4.
2. Loans and advances in the nature of loans to refated parties - Nil
3. Gurantees given by the Company in respect of loans as on 31st March 2022 - Nit

23 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.
) Amount in @ Lakh)
As on 31-Mar-2022 As on 31-Mar-2021

Within 12 After 12 Tatal Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months

ASSETS

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.04 .04 0.04 - 0.04

Bank Balances other than cash and cash 447 447 5.49 5.49
equivalent

Receivabjes
(i) Trade receivables - - -
Leans - - - -
[nvestments 102,002.25 102,002.25 149,167.68 149,167.88
Other Financial assets 150 1.50 1.50 1.50
Sub total 451 102,003.75 102,008.26 5.54 149,169.38 149,174.92

Non-financial assets
Mon current Tax assers (Net) - - - -
Investment Praperty - - - .
Property, Plant and Equipment - - - -
Other Intangible assets . ) : N
QOther Non-financial assets - . - . - .
Sub total - - - - - -

Total Assets 451 | 102,003.75 | 102,008.26 5.54 149,169.38 149,174.92

BILITIES A 1]
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -
Payables
Trade payabies 6.59 5.59 4.02 402
Borrowings - - - 11.21 1121
Deposits - - - i -
Other Financial liabilities 0.25 - 0.25 012 - 012
Sub total 6.83 ’ - 6.83 4.14 1121 15.35

Non-Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities [Net} - - ) - - -
Provisions - . - " N -
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - - - - ) h
Other non-financial liabilities - - N - - -
Sub total - - - - - -

EQUITY
Bquity Share Capital 10,125.00 10,125.00 10,125.00 10.125.00
Other equity 91,876.42 91,876.42 139,034.57 139,034.57
Sub tota) - 102,0061.42 | 10Z,001.42 : 149,159.57 149,159.57

—

Total Liabilities and equity| 6.83 102,00142 | 102,008.26 4.14 149,170.77 149,174.92




24 Ratio as per the Schedude Ill requirements

i) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio {CRAR}- Stock of High Quality Liquid Assets divided by Expected cash cutflows for 30 days
% |Particulars 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
High Guality Liquid Assets 4.51 5.54
Total net Cashfiow amounts 6.83 4.14
Ratio 65.98% 133.62%
% Change from previous period/ year (102.52%)
Increase is due to non payment of payables due to shortage of fund
i) Tier [CRAR
Particulars 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Net owned furd 102,001.42 149,159.57 |
Total risk weighted assets 102,002.25 149,167.88
Ratio 100.00% 99.99%
% Change from previous period/ year 0.00%
iif) Tier [ CRAR
Particulars 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Aggregate Tier il Capital -
Total risk weighted assets - -
Ratio 8.00% 0.00%
% Change from previous period/ year 0.00%
iv) liquidity Coverage Ratio
Particulars 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
High Quality Liquid Assets 4.51 5,54
Total net Cashflow amounts 6.83 414
Ratio ' 65.98% 1 133.62%
% Change from previous period/ year (102.52%)
Increase is due to non payment of payables due to shortage of fund
25 Other Statutory information
i) The Company does not have any Benami property ., where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.
ii} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaﬁtlon which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
iif) Detalls of transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companles Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
Nature of transacticns with struck-off Company | Name of Struck Balance Balance Relationship with the Struck off
offcomapany | outstanding | outstanding { company, if any, to be disclosed
amounts in amounts in
consideration | consideration
as on 31 March|as on 31 March
2022 2021
Investinent in Securities Not Applicable
Receivable Not Applicable
Payables Mot Applicable
Shares held by struckofcompany Not Applicable
Other outstanding balance Not Applicable
iv} The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period.
v} During the year the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds te any other person (5)or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shalk:
a} Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vi) During the year the Company have not received any fund from any person (s}or eatity {ies), inciuding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the [ntermediary shall:
a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vii) The Company have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books oFaccounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income d

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

viii) The Company does not have any owned or Leased immovable property




26 Foreseable losses
-~

The company does not have any long term ocntracts

27 Other matters

Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule 11l to the Act is either Nil or not applicable to the Company for the year,

28 Previous year's figures

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Accordingly, amounts and other disclosure for the previous year are included
as an integral part of the current year's financial statement and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the curreat year.

For Vatsaraj & Co. _ For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 111327

v

Dr. CA B. K, VatSaraj Mr.]éiram Sridharan Mr. Pradeep Bhadauria

Partner Director Director
M No.: 039894 DIN : 05165390 DIN : 08696317
Place : Mumbai '

Date: 25/5/2022




Vatsa'l'aj 8 CO- {(Regd.)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
First Floor, Fort Chambers,

C Block, 65 Tamarind Lane,
Fort, Mumbai - 400 023,
Tel No.: +91-22 2265 3931

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT _ +91-22 2263 5488

To the Board of Directors of DHFL Holdings Limited
Report on the Audit of the Special purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying special purpose Standalone Ind AS financial statements
of DHFL Holdi}.lgs Limited(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March
31, 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including Other comprehensive income) for
the period April 01 2021 to September 30 2021 and October 01 2021 to March 31 2022, the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period April 01 2021 to March 31 2022, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and otherr_,
explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”). The financial
statements have been prepared by managerﬁent in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Actread with the Companies (Indian Accoun‘ting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for theFinancial

Statements:

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is reéponsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Acf with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
g.ive a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standérds (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Actread with the Companies (Indian Accbuhting Standards) Rules, 2015,

as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records

Fourth Floor, Bharat House, 104, Mumbdi Samachar Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 00
Phone: +91 22 4069 3900/39 Fax: +91 22 4069 3910 Email: admin@vatsarajco.co



appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
-prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to cbntinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accéunting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. |

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s fmancial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
. statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriéte in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounfing
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made By management, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

a basis for our audit opinion,




Qualified Opinion 7 _

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us,except for the information referred to in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so reqﬁired and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the aceounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as. at March 31, 2022, and Profit including other comprehensive income for
the period April 01 2021 to September 30 2021 and October 01 2021 to March 31 2022,
- changes in equity for the period April 01 2021 to Mafch 31 2022,

Basis of Qualified Opinion

We draw your attention to note no 14 of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement wherein the
accounts of the company have been prepared on the basis that the company is a going concern.
However, in view of having no operations since the inception of the company, the ability of the
company to carry on business “as a going concern” is largely dependent upon the future operations, if

any and the availability of substantial financial support

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 2 to the financial statements,
which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist the
Company for consolidation with the holding company. As a result, the financial statements

may not be suitable for another purpose.

For Vatsaraj& Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 1113%

Dr. CA B.K. Vatsaraj
Partner '
M. No. 039894
UDIN:-

Date: 25t May 2022
Place: Murmbai
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Vatsaraj (3 Co. wear,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
First Floor, Fort Chambers,

C Block, 65 Tamarind tane,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Fort, Mumbai - 400 023.
: : Tel No.: +91-22 2265 3931

+91-22 2263 5488

To the Members of DHFL Holdings Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
1. We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of DHFL Holdings
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to és “the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements”). '
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the information referred to in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
. the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (Ind AS) as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2022, and loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date,

Basis for Qualifiea Opinion

2. We draw your attention to note no 14 of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement whereintheaccounts
of the company have been prepared on the basis that the company is a going concern. However, in view of
having no opemtibns since the inception of the company, thé ability of the company to carry on business

“as a going concern” is largely dependent upon the future operations, if any and the guailghility of
Ig’ g

substantial financial support.

Fourth Floor, Bharat House, 104, MumbailSamachar Marg, Fort, Mumbai \e#!
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We have conducted our audit m: accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with thé‘ ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.However because
of the matter described in the basis of disciaim_er of opinion section of our report, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on

these standalone financial statement.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

3. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the, Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board's :Reéort and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon Our opinion on the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS
'Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information|, we are required to communicate the matter to

those charged with governance.

' Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
4, The Compaﬁy’ s Board of D_iréctors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash -
~ flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of

the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other irregulaﬁlies; selection alnd application of appt
Y
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unting policies; making




judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
' maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also i'esponsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

5. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expectéd to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statemeﬁts. |

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticisin throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expréessing our opinion on whether the company has adequate

internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




* Evaluate the appropriateness of accbunting. policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of -_maﬁagement’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Stgridalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the finapciai statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves }air presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a st.aten‘lent that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonébly be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulaltory Requirements

6. As required by the Companie's%(Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of sub-section 11 of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” of this report a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent appiicabie. As Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or
associate enterprise, consolidated financial statements is not prepared. Hence Paragraph 3(xxi)

of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) is not applicable.

7. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;




(b) in our Qpinion; proper books of account a's_requ'u'ed by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit aﬁd Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accdunting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, except for the information referred to in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t- March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31¢
March, 202.2 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“ Annexure B”.

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position. | |

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company:

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understandmg, whether recorded m writing or o:thérwise, that
the Intermediary sha.ll, whcﬁhef, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries |

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than

as disclosed in the notes to the accouwf&: S ve been received by the company from




any person(s) or entity(ies), including fofeign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and
(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement. |

v. The dividend is neither declared nor paid during the year by the company.

9. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration

is paid by the company to its dircctors during the current year. The Ministry of Corporate

Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be

commented upon by us.

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 111327W

e

Dr. CA B. K. Vatsaraj
Place: Mumbai ‘ Partner
Date: 25t May 2022 ‘ M. No. 039894
UDIN: 22039894 AKRURA7607




Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Ind AS financial statements of

DHFL Holdings Limited as on 31st March 2022, referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on

Other Legal and Regulatory requirement” section of our report of even date, we report the

following;

(1)

(i)

(iii) (a)
®)

(iv)

v)-

(vi)

(vif)
(@)
(b)

(vii)

)  (a)

The Company does not have any fixed asset. Therefore, Para 3 (i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

The Company does not have and inventories Therefore, Para 3 (ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. _

According to the information and explanation given to us and according to the records of the
Company as examined by us, the company has not provided loans or advances in nature of loan
or stood guarantee or provided security to any other eﬁtity. Therefore, Para 3(iii)(a), (c ), (d), (e)
and (f) are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and according to the records of the
Company as examined by us, the company has not provided guarantee or given security
Therefore, Para 3(iii)(b) is not applicable to the Company. '

In our opinion and 'according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, orj made any investment or not provided any guarantee and
securities; hence comphance of the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act is not

applicable.

In our opinion and a@cordmg to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposit. Therefore, Para 3 (v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

-Company being in service industry, maintenance of Cost records is not applicable.

Therefore, Para 3 (vi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

~ Inrespect of statutory dues:

According to the information and explanahon given to us and accordmg to the records
of the Company as ex?mmed by us, undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund,employees’ state insurance,income tax, custom duty cess, goods and services tax
and other material sl;atutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year with
the appropriate authomnes No undisputed amounts payable were outstanding as at
March 31, 2022 for a perlod of more than six months from. the date on which they
become payable. :
According to the informalion and explanation given to.us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no disputed dues which have not been
deposited as on March 31,2022,

According to the mformatmn and explanation given to us'and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no transactions to be recorded in the books of
account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income durmg the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

Accordmg to the mformatwn and explanation given to us and based on the records of
the Company examlned by us, the Company has not defaulted on repayment of any
Loan or Interest during the year.

7 .--§'
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)

()

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

()

(b)

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lenders.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, Company has not taken any term loan.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, funds raised on short term basis are utilized for short
term purpose only. | .

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associates or
Joint Venture . . . _
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, No loans were raised during the year by way of pledge of
securitiesl therefore Para 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records of
the Company examined by us, during the year Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offermg or other pubhc offering, Therefore, Para 3 (x)(a) of the
Order is not apphcable to the Company

According to the mformatxon and explanation glﬁ’én to us and'based on the records of
the Company exammed by us, during the year Company hqs not raised any money by
way of preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures.
Therefore, Para 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not apphcable to the Company

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanation given to us; no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its
officers/ employees has been noticed or teported, durinig the year. Therefore, Para 3 (xi)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company |

In our op:ihion and according to information and explahations given to us, Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, Para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company |

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification
of the records of the Company and on the basis of review and approval by the Board
and Audit Committee, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the ‘details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS financial staterhe‘nt_s as required by the
applicable accounting standards. ' o

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system as per the provision of the companies act 2013 -

The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.




(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Place: Mumbai
Date:25%h May 2022

@)

(b)

@

Accordihg to the information and explanation given to us and b'a.sed on our verification
of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. |

According to the information and explanation given to us the company is in process of
getting itself registered under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification
of the records of the Company, During the year no Non Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities are conducted. | _

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as deflned in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India.

Accordmg to the information and explanation given to us, the Group does not have any
CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not apphcable

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification
of the records of the Company, Company has incurred cash losses during the Financial

year INR376.71 Hundre|d and preceding financial year INR 764. '72 Hundred

ALcordmg to the information and explanation given to us and based on our verification
of the records of the Company, there are no re31gnat10n of the: statutory auditor during
the year.

In our opinion and According to the information and explanation given to us and based
on the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisatjon of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompad‘ymg the Standalone Ind AS.

‘Pinancial Statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and

management plans, material uncertainty exists as.on the date of the audit report that
company might not be ca_pable of meeting its 11ab111t1es ex1sflmg at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a p_erlod- of one yeai from the balance sheet date;

According to the information and explar.ahon given to us and based on our verification
of the records of the Company, Section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 is not applicable
to the Company. Therefore para 3(xx) of the order is not apphcable to the Company.

According to the inf_ormation and explahation given to us and based on our verification
of the records of the Compaﬁy, Consolidated financial statement is not prepared as there
is no subsidiary, joint venture or associate enterprise, Therefore para 3(xxi) of the order
is not applicable.

For Vatsaraj& Co. -
Chartered Accountar)&s

FRN: 11}3@1///\
.

Dr.CA B. K. Vatsaraj
Partner
M. No. 039894




ANNEXURE ‘B’ to Independent Auditors” Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement
of DHFL Holdirrgs Limited, Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal

and Regulatory requirement” section of our report of even date,

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DHFL Holdings Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in con]unctlon with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS

financial statenients of the Company for the year ended on that, date

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s managenient is respc:nsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting cr1te11a established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in tlie Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controlq over Financial Reportmg issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (* ICAI’)

These responsibilities include the desigﬁ,-implemenltation and maintenance of adequate' internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring ithe orderly and efficient conduct of its -
business, including adheren:ce to company’s policies, the safeguardmg of its assets, the prevention
and detectien of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compléteness of the accounting records, and

the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as reqfuired under the Act.

Auditors’ Resp0n31b111ty

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Cornpanys internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls .over Financial Reperﬁﬁg (the "Guielanee Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued byélCAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to.an audit of internal financiel controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the In‘-‘.tlh]t(-‘ of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require tk 1at we comply W1th ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whetheriadequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

10



Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal

financial repotting system with reference to standalone Ind AS financial stat_errtent of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's mternal financial control over finarcial reporting is a process designed te provide

reasonable assurance regarding the rehablhty of financial reporting and the preparatlon of

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal- financial control over financial tepo’rting

includes those policies and procedures that | _ |

(1)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and d1sposmons of the assets of the company

(2) Prov1de reasonable assurance that transactnons are recorded as necessary to permit
preparanon of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting ptim_:iﬁles, and that receipts and expenditufes of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of managet'nent anct directors of the company;
and _ G .

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventlon or tlme]ly detection of unauthorized
vaLIlSlthIl, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a matemal effect on
the Standalorie Ind AS Financial Statéments.

Inherent Lmutatlons of Internal Financial Corilrols Qver I‘manual R eporting

Because of the mherent limitations of internal fmancml controls ever fmancml reporting, mcludmg

the possibility of collusion or 1mprope.r rnanagemenl overr 1de of controls, material misstatements

due to error or fraud raay occur and not be detected. Also, ptolecttons of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over {inancial reporting to future perlods alle sub]ect lJ) the risk that the
internal financial control over tm*mmal reporting may become madequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of complmnce witl the policies or procedures may deterlor%te

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequote mternal financial-controls
system over financial réporting and: such internal financial controls over' financial reporting were

operating effectlvely as at 31% March, 2022, based on the mta.rnal control over financial reporting

criteria established b.y the Company considering the essential comp_onent_s of _mtemal

11



in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financijal Reporting‘iss‘ﬁed by

the Institute of Chartered Accoun_teints of India.

Place: Mumbai
Date:25t May 2022

12

- For Vatsaraj& Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 111327W

g

Dr.CA B. K, Vatsaraj
. Parter.
M. No. 039894




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 3Ist March, 2022

(Z Hundred)

Particulars

{d)

(e)
(0
(8}

(a)
{b)
(©

®

(k)

(a)
(b}

(@)
{b)

I {Liabilities and Equity

Note

As at 31.03.22

As at 31.03.21

Assets
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Bank Balance other than (a) above
Derivative Financial Instrument
Receivables

() Trade Receivable

{II) Other Receivable

Loans

Investments

Other Financial Assets

Non-Financial Assets

Inventories

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Investnent Property

Biological Assets other than Bearer Plants
Property Plant and Equipment

Capital WIP

Intangible Assets under development
Goedwill ‘ '

Other Intangible Assets :
Other Non Financial Assets {to be specified)

Total Assets

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Financial Instrument

Payables

{I)Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

{li) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises.

{II} Other Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Deposits

Subordinated Liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Non-Financial Liabilities

Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Other non-financial liabilities(to be specified)

EQUITY
Equity Share capital
Other Equity -

Total Liabilities and Equity

Significant accounting policies

133.16

761.35

266.21

1,000.00
(1,915.94)

1,000.00
{1,539.23)

111.63

133.16

As per our report of even date
For Vatsaraj & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRN: 111327W /

Dr. CA B. K. Vaisaraj
Partner
M No.: 39894

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2022

Anternal Use--Confidentiaf

Mr. Pradeep Sawant
Director

DIN : 08957171




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Profit & loss account for the year ended 31st March, 2022

aeesmal Use-~Conlidensial

Dr. CA B, K. Vatsaraj

Partner
M No.: 39594

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25¢h May, 2022

Mr. Pradeep Sawant

Director

DIN : 08957171

(X Hundred)
* th
Particulars Notes For the yearended | For the year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
e
Revenue from operations
(i) |Interest Income - -
(i1 |Dividend income - -
(ifll  |Renatal Income . N
(iv) |Fees and Commission Income - -
(¢} |Net gain on fair value changes - -
(vi)  [Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amertised cost category - -
(vil) |Sale of products{including Excise Duty) : N -
(vii) [Sale of services - "
(ix) |Others (to be specified) N .
(I)  |Total Revenue from operations - -
(I1)  [Other Income (to be specified) - -
(IL1) | Total Income (I+II} . _
Expenses
(i}  |Finance Costs 16.21 -
{ii)  |Fees and commission expense - -
(iii}  |Net loss on fair vaiue changes . -
{ivi  |Netloss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category - -
(v)  |Impairment on financial instruments N R
(vi)  {Costof materials consumed - -
(vil) |Purchases of Stock -in -trade - -
(vii) jChanges in Inventories of finished goods, stock -in - trade and work -in - progress - -
(i) |Employee Benefits Expenses ) - -
{ix) |Depreciation , amortization and impairmen - -
(x}  |Others expenses (to be specified) 8 360,50 764,72
(IV}) |Total Expenses (IV} 376,71 764.72
(V) [Profit/ (loss) before exceptional ltems and tax {{II - 1V) (376.71) (764.72)
(VI) {Exceptional items - .
{VID) [Profit/(loss) before tax (V -VI ) (376.71) (764.72)
(VIID) |Tax Expenses - -
(a) Current Tax - -
(k) Deferred Tax ] - -
(IX)  |Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations( VI -VIIT § (375.71) (764.72)
(X}  [Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations
(XE) Tax Expense of discontinued operations
L) |Profitf{less) from discontinued operations{After tax) (X -XI} - -
(XIID |Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) (37671} {764.72)
(XIV) |Other Comprehensive [ncome
(A) E
{i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and amounts) - -
(i) Tncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Subtotal (A) - -
(B)
(1) [tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss {specify items and amounts) - -
{ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Subtotal (B)
Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising Profit (Loss) and other
(XV) 1Comprehensive Income for the pexiod) {376.71) {764.72)
Paid-up Eguity Share Capital (Face value 310) 1,000.00 1,000.00
(XVI) {Earnings per equity share (for continuing cperations)
Basic (%) (3.57) {7.65
Diluted (%) 3.77) {7.65)
(XVII) |Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations}
Basic (%) -
Diluted <) -
(XVIII} |Earnings per equity share (for continuing and discontinued operations) 9
Basic (%) (3.77) (7.65)
Diluted (%) (3.77) (7.65)
See accompanying notes to the financial statemenis
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and behal of'gu-,Buard of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRIN: 111327W

DIN : 00058068




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2022

(T Hundred)

For the year ended 31.03,2022

For the year ended 31,03,2021

A. CASH FL.OW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/{Loss) Before Tax (376.71) (764.72)
Adjustments for:
Interest Paid 16.21
Operating Profit before Working capital changes {360.50) {764.72)
Changes in Working capitai
Other Financial Liabilities 88.96 572.39
Other Financial Assets -
Waorking Capital changes ) 88.96 572.39
Cash generated from operations during the year {271.54) (192.33)
Net Cash From Operating Activities (271.54) (192.33)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Current Investments not considered as Cash or cash equivalents
Investments in Equity Shares -
Net Cash used in investing Activities -
C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interet Paid -
Loan received/{paid) from Holding Company 250.00 250.00 - -
Net Cash generated From / (Used in) Financing Activities 250.00 -
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents (21.54) (192.33)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 133.16 325,49
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the close of the year 111,63 133.16
This is the Cash Flow referred to in our Report of even date.
Negative Figure (-} represents Cash Outflow,
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
iCAl FRN; 111327W
Dr. CAB, K. Mr. Pradeep Sawant
Partner Director
M No.: 39894 DI ; 08957171 DIN : 0BO58068

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2022

Internal Use—Confidential




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended 31st March 22

A

Equity Share Capital
Current Period (¥ Hundred}
Balance at the . . N Restated balance Balance at the—|
L Changes in equity . . .
, beginning of the|- , at the beginning | Changes in equity share end of
Particulars : share capital due to i i . .
reporting . . of the reperting | capital during the year reporting
A prior peried errors h )
period period period
10,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up
AS at 31st March 2021 1,000.00 - - - 1,000.00
AS at 31st March 2022 1,000.00° - - - 1,000.00
Other Equity
(T Hundred)
Reserves & Surplus
Retained | Other
Partiufars ¢ a_ Comprehensive Total
Earnings :
Income
Az at 1st April'20 (774.51) - {774.51)
Profit/{Loss) for the Year Ended {764.72) - (764.72)
Asg at 32st March'21 (1,539.23) - .(1,539.23)
As at Tst April21 (1,539.23) - (1,539.23)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year Ended (376.71) - (376.71)
As at 31st March'22 {1,915.94} - (1,915.94)

As per our report of even date

Fox Vatsaraj & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAT FRN: 111327W

Dr.CAB. K.
Partner
M No.: 39894

tsaraj

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2022

invernal Uses Confldentlsl

;

o

Mr. Pradeep Sawant

Director

DIN : 08957171

DIN : 10053068




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Information forming part of the Financial Statements for the Period ended 31st March, 2022

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

DHFL Holdings Lid.(DHL) is whelly owned subsidiary company of Dewan Housing finance Corporation Limited and has been incorporated
an 28th September 2018 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. DHL has been incorporated to carry on the business/businesses of
holding and Investment Company, to buy, underwrite, invest in, acquite, hold, deal in and trade in shares, stocks, debentures,
debenture-stock, bonds, obligations and securities of any kind of companies or partnership firms or body corporate, whether in India or
elsewhere in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other applicable statutory and legal provisions. DHL has registered
office in Mumbai. :

z SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
21 Basis of preparation of financial statements :

at The Company has adopted Ind AS standards effective from date of incorporation. Al applicable ind AS have been applied consistently
wherever required.

I
b} The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at felr
values at the end of each reporting periad, as explained in the accounting policies below,

¢ These financial statements have been prepared on a going conceyn basis. The Company is in the process of raising funds by way of equity and
borrowings fram holding Company

d) The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reperted amounts of assets
and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reparting period. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the resulis are known / materialised.

e} Amounts in the financial statements are presented in 2, unless otherwise stated.

f}  Based on the nature of its activities, the company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its Assets
and Liabilities as current and non-current.

22 Revenue Recognition :
Dividend Income
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
dividend.
Other Income
Revenue is recognised when there is reasonable certainty as to measurement and ullimate realization of the same.

23 Financial Instrument .
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instriiment of another
entity.

(DFinancial Asset;

Initial recognition and measurement :

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through the
statement of profit and loss,transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, purchase or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a fime frame established by regulation or convention in the market place are recognized on the trade
date Le. the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement : For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified a5 measured at:  Amortised cost * Fair
value through praofit and loss (FVTFL) « Fair vakue through other comprehensive income (FYTQCI).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (EVTPL) : Financial asset are measured at fair value through profit and loss if it does not
meet the criteria for classification as measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCL All fair value changes are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss. '

Equity [nstruments :All investments in equity instraments classifled under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the group
may, on initial recogunition, irrevocably efect to measure the same either at FYTOCI or FVTPL.
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Financial Liability

Initial recognition and measurement :

Financia! liabilities are recognized initially al fair value plus any transaction cost that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financiat
liability except financial liabilities at FVTPL that are measured at fair value,

Subsequent measurement :

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amothsed cost using the EIR methed. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value with all chaniges in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amorfized cost: Amortized cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amertization using the effective interest methed of any
difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount. The company is classifying the following under amortized cost.
(1)Borrowings from banks (2) Borrowings from others (3)Trade payables (4) Other financial liabilities.

Derecognition: A financial liability shall be derecognized when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to an insignificant rlsk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks and on hand, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Impairment of Assets :

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairmeni based on internal / external
factors, An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the asset's fair value less cost of disposals and value in use. In assessing value in use, the stimated future cash flows are
discounted to their preseni value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset
over its rematning useful life Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in expense categories.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares cutstanding during the pericd.

Tor the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or luss for the period attributable to equity sharehclders and the
weighted average number of shares ouistanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the
provisions of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to femporary differences between the financial
statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and labilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the balance sheet dates. The effect on the deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rate is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date, Deferred tax assets aTe recognized only to the
extent there is virtual certainty of realization in future.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requites an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require ar outflow of resources. Where there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets
are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.




6 Equity Share capital
i Hundred)
Changes in Restated .Chang.es
Balance at the . inequity | Balance at
. equity share [balance at the
. beginning of i e share the end of
Particulars . capital due to | beginning of . .
the reporting i i ; ‘capital reporting
R prior period | the reporting . X
period ) during the| period
errors period
year
Authorised
1,00,000 Equity Shares of % 10/- each 10,000.00 ~ - - 10,000.00
. 10,800.00 - - - 10,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
10,000 Bquity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up 10,000.00 - - - 10,000.00
10,000.00 | - - - 10,000.00

The Company at present has one class of issued, subscribed and paid up share referred to as equity shares having a par value of 7 10/-

share is entitled to one vole per share. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend.

(¥ Hundred)
Particulars As af 31.03,2022 As at 31.03.2021
No. of shares ||~ Amount No. of shares |  Amount
Equity shares at the beginning 10,000.00 1,000.00 10,000.00 1,000.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Equity shares at the end 10,000£Q 1,000.00 105000.00 1,000.00

Details of shareholders holding more than five percent equity

shares in the Company and by the Promoters are as under;

Particulars As at 31,03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
No. of shares | % holding | No. of shares | % holding
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly Dewan Housing Finance
Corporation Ltd.) 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
{Holding Company)
Total 10,000 100.00 | 10,000 100.00
7 Other Equity
Refer to the statement of changes in equity for movement in Other equity.
3 Other Expenses
(T Hundred}
. For the year | For the year
Pasticulars ended 31.03.22| ended 31.03.21
(a) Auditor's Remuneration 100.00 100.00
(b) Bank Charges 21.54 54.22
{c) Filing Fees 32,00 252.00
(d) Professional fees 157.50 291.00
{€) GST Expenses 46.35. 67.50
(f) Miscellaneous Expenses 3.11 -
{Total Other expenses 360.50 764.72
9 Earning Per Share
(¥ Hundred)
For the year | For the year
ended ended
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Profit/(Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (3767 (764.72)
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders {376.71) (764.72)
No. of Equity shares (Number) 10,000.00 10,000.00
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 10,000.00 10,000.00
Nominal value of Equity Shares (2) 10 10
Earning Per Share (%) :
Basic (3.77) (7.65)
Diluted (3.77) (7.65)

intorral Use—Lonfidanlat
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10 Related parties transactions

As per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 24) on " Relaled Party Disclosures” details of transactions with related parties as
defined therein are given below: ’
A) List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
1} COMPANIES
(i) Holding Company

(2) Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited ( Formerly Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

i) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSQNNEL, DIRECT R
(a) Mr. Pradeep Atmaram Sawant, Director (wef, 11.11,2020).
(b) Mr. Bipin Singh, Director (wef 08.11.2621)

(a) DHFL Advisory & Investments Private Limited

(b) DHFL Changing Lives Foundation ’

(c) Firamal Consummer Products Private Limited

(4) PEL Finhold Private Limited

(e) Viridis Power Managers Private Limited

{f) Piramal Systems & Technologies Private Limited

" (g) Piramal Investment Advisory Services Private Limited

(h} Providian Technology Services Private Limited {under liquidition)

B) Details of transactions during the Period ended 37st March, 2022

¥ Hundred)
Associates
Details of Transactions For the year For the year
ended ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Interest on loan 16.21 -
Qther Payable 25000 -
OQutstanding balance as on 51.3.2002 266.21 -

11 Audit Fees

@ Hundred)
. As at . Asat
Particulars 31032022 | 31.03.2021
Audit Fees 100.00 100.00
Total Audit Fees 100.00 | 100.00

12 Deferred Tax Assets not recognised as a matter of prudence.

13 Contingent Liability : NIL

14 The Board of Directors is in the process of exploring business opportunities, evaluating proposals to revive business of the Company. The Company plans to raise

funds by way of equity and borrowings from the holding Company. In the meantime, company intends to carry out the activity of investment in shares and
securities in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other applicable laws. Hence, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis

Ilerna) Uie-Confidentis]



Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note: 15

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ~ FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

A Accounting classification

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

profit ar loss

(X Hundred)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fair Value
. ' i h Amarti
Particulars At carrying Value Fair Val.ue throug Amaortised Cost At carrying Value through rtised
profit or loss Cost

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Others 111.63 - - 133.16 - -
Investments:
investment in associates /
Joint ventures - - - - - .
111.63 - - 133.16 - -

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 266.21 - - - - -
Trade Payable 761.35 - - 672.39 - -
Other financial liability - -

1,027.56 - - 672.39 - -

There have been no transfers between Levei 1 and Levat 2 during the year.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, tratle payables, other financial assets
and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of thase

instruments.

Internal use--Confidenital




FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Note 15 Cont'd '
B Measurement of fair values

Valuation technigues and significant uncbservable inputs

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair
Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type : Valuation technique Significant Inter-
unobservable| relationship
inputs between
significant
unobservable
inputs and fair
value
measuremeitt
Unquoted equity shares |The Investments measured at fair value|] Not applicable { Not applicable
and falling under fair value hierarchy
Unquoted debentures |The Investment made in unquoted Not applicable | Not applicable
Mutual Funds The Fair values of investments in Mutual | Notapplicable | Not applicable

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value
Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent, trade

The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 15 Contd
Financial instroments - Fair values

C Financial Risk Management
"The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments;
Credit risk
Liguidity risk and
Market risk
Risk management framework

The Company’s. principal financial labilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance

the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations, The Company also holds FVTPL investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

-

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk.

Financial instriments affected by market risk include FVTPL nvestments. . '

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insirument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates,

2 Equity price risk
The Company’s non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the
investment securities. Company’s investment in it's group company - DHFL Pramarica Life Insurance Company Limited, which is non-
listed, is significant. But being the startegic investment, company is not enfluenced by equity price risk

Credit risk
Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
 loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk froin its operating activities from its other financial instruments

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Cradit risk from balances with banks and financial mstitutions is managed by the Company’s board of directors, Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approval of Board of directars.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risling damage to the Company’s repuitation.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows

- and matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabilities

Capital Management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and heaithy capital ratios in
ozder to support its business and maximise sharehoider value, The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 1o it, in
light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Cornpany may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareheolders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. :
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Miera, small and medium enterprises disclosure
The identification of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises is based on the management’s knowledge of their status. The
Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 |

Disclosures required under section 22 of the Migro, Small and Madium En terprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED Act).

Particulars As on 31-Mar- Ason 3i-Mar-
2022 2021

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier - -
as at the end of the accounting year,
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid te any - -
supplier as at the end of the accounting vear.
The amount of interest paid along with the amounts - -
of the payment made to the suppiier bayond the
appointed day. ~
The amount of interest due and payable for the - -
perlod of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining - -
unpaid at the end of the accounting year.
The amount of further interest due and payable even - -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management, This has been relied upon by
the auditors. .

Details of Loans and Investments as required w's 186(4) of Companies Act, 2(13;-
1. Loans and advances in the nature of loans to retated parties - Nil
2. Gurantees given by the Company in respect of loans as on 31st Mar 2022 - Nil

Vide Order dated June 7, 2021, the Mumbai bench of the Hon'ble Nationai Company Law Tribunat ("NCLT"} approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Piramal
Capital & Heusing Finance Limited (“PCHFL"} for the Corporate Insolvency resolution process of Dewan Housing Finance Corpration Limited (“DHFL") under Section
31 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, Pursuant to the Resolution Plan, PCHFL has ebtained control over DHFL and its subsidiaries by virtue of holding 100%
shareholding and subsequently, PCHFL merged into DHFL to conclude acquisition on September 30, 2021 (Tmplementation Date). The Resolution Plan was filed with
the respective Registrar of Companies on Septernber 30, 2021 giving effect to the said merger.

Maturity analysis of assets and labilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.
(2 Hundred)

As on 31-Mar-2022 Ason 31-Mar-2021
Within 12 months After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months

ASSETS

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - . -

Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalent
11153 . 111,63 133.16 § - 13316

Regejvables
(i) Trade receivables - - - - . -
Loans - - - . - -
[nvestments - - - - - ) -
Other Financial assets - - - - - -
Sub total . 111.63 - 111.63 133.16 - 133.16

Non-financial assets
Non current Tax assets (Net} - - - - - -
Investment Property - - - - - -
Property, Plant and Equipment - . - R - -
Other Intangible assets - - . - - -
Other Non-financial assets - - - . - .
Sub total - - - ) - N -

Total Assets 111.63 - 111.63 133.16 - 133.16

-10ther equity - (191594 (1.915.84) - (1,539.23) (1.538.23)

LIABIL) AND EQU!
LIARILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -
Payahles
Trade payables 761.35 761.35 67239 672,39
Borrowings B - R - R -

Trade payabies - - - - B R

Other Financial liabilities 266.21 - 266.21 - - -

Sub tetal 1,027.56 - 1,027.56 67239 - 67239

Non-Financial liabilities
Current tax Habllities {Net) - - - . - -
Provisions - - . - . -
Deferred tax Nabllities [Net) - - - - - .
Other non-financial Habilities - - : - - - R
Sub total - - - - - -

EQUITY
Equity Share Capital - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1.000.00

Sub total - (915.94) 915.99) R (539.23) (539.23)

Total Liabilities and equity 1,027.56 (915.94} 111.63 67239 (539.23) 133.16
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For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFRN: 113327/

Dr. CA B. K. Vatsaraj
Pariner
M No.: 39894

Place:

Date: 25th May, 2022

Ratio as Per the Schedule 01 requirements

Capital ko Nslc-weighted assets ratio {CRAR)- Stack of High Quality Liquid Assets divided by Expected cash outflows for 30 days

Particulafs 31-Mar-2022 | 31 March 2021
High Quality Liquid Assets 111,63 133.16
Total net Cashflow amounts 1027.56 67239
Rako . 11% 20%
% Chang€ from previous period/ year (82.30%;

Tier | CRAR

Particulars 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Netowned fund 915.94) (539.23)
Total risk weighted assets N N
Ratio 0.00% 0.00%
% Change frem previous period/ year 0.00%

Tier [t CRAR

Particulars 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021 -

Aggregate Tier I Capital . N
Total risk weighted assets - N
Ratio 0.00% 0.00%
% Change fom previous period/ year 0.00%

Liquidity Coverape Ratio

Particulars 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021

High Quality Liquid Assats 11163 13316 . N
Total net Cashilow for next 30 days 905.56 55439

Ratio 12.27% 24.02%

% Change from previous period/ year . (95.72%)

Other Statutory information
The Campany does nat have any Benami property , where any proceading has been initiated or perding against the Company for lrolding any Benami property,
The Company does nat have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

Detalls of transactions with the companies strucle off under section 248 of Compandes Act, 2013 or section 560 of Compantes Act, 1956 are as follows:

Nature of transactions with struck-off Company| Name of Struck off Balance Balance Relationship with the Struclc
comapany outstanding outstanding off company, If any, to be
amounts in amounts in disclosed

| consideration as| consideration as
on 31 March an 31 March

2022 2021
Investment in Securities - - Not Applicabte
Receivable - - Net Applicable
Payablas - - Naot Applicable
Stares held by struckofcompany - - Mot Applicable
Other outstanding balance N - - Not Applicable

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the perlod.

The Company have not advanced or Ioaned or invested funds to any other person (s)or entity [jes), including fereign entittes (intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall:

Direetly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or ot behalf of the Company (Ultimate Bereficiaries); or
Pravide any guarantes, security or the filte on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries,

The Corapany have not received any fund from any person {s)or entity (ies), including forgign entities {Funding Party] with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Intermediary shail:

Directly or indirectly lend or favest it other persens or enities identified in any wanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
Pravide any guarantee, security or the like on betaf of the Ulimate Benefictaries,

The Corapany bave not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other ralevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Title deeds for all the immovabie property {other than properties where the Company s the lessee and the lease agreernents are duly exccuted in favour of the lessee) are heid in the name of
the Compatty.

Foreseable losses

The Company lias a process whereby periodically all long terim contracts are d for material f ble losses. At the year-end, the Company has reviewed al such contracts and
confirmed that no provision is required to be created under any law / accounting standard towards any foreseeable loss,

Other matters
Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule Il to the Act is eftkor Nil or not applicable t the Company lor the year.
Previous year's figures

The previous year's figures have been regreuped and veclassified,

oard of Directors

. Pradeep Sawant
<tor
DIN : 08957171

Mumbai
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